ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET

CASE: C14H-2007-0244 — Keller Zoning Z.A.P. DATE: February 19, 2008
and McKinney’s Mill Historic Site June 3, 2008
June 17, 2008
July 1, 2008

H.L.C. DATE: May 19, 2008

ADDRESS: 2935 East SH 71 Westbound; 2901, 2903 and 2905 Ellon Road; and 2936 Terry
Lane

OWNER: Keller Family Investments, Ltd. & AGENT: Carlson, Brigance & Doering,
Paul Keller Investments, Ltd. Inc. (Doug Rummel)
(Kerry A. Keller)

ZONING FROM: I-RR; I-SF-2 TO: CS AREA: 17.248 acres
AMENDED AREA: 23 440 acres

SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The Staff recommendation is to grant general commercial services — conditional overlay (CS-
CO) combining district zoning for Tracts 1 and 2, with the Conditional Overlay prohibiting
vehicle storage use, limiting the number of daily trips to 2,999 and prohibiting motor vehicle
access to Ellon Road. The Staff recommendation is to grant general commercial services-
historic landmark (CS-H) combining district zoning for Tract 3.

If the requested zoning is granted, then 200 feet of right-of-way should be reserved from the
existing centerline of State Highway 71 in accordance with the Transportation Plan.

ZONING AND PLATTING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

February 19, 2008: THE COMMISSION AND THE APPLICANT JOINTLY AGREED TO
AN INDEFINITE POSTPONEMENT.
{C. HAMMOND:; J. SHIEH] (5-0) K. JACKSON — ARRIVED LATE; J. MARTINEZ,
T. RABAGO — ABSENT

June 3, 2008: MEET ING CANCELLED DUE TO AGENDA POSTING ERROR
June 17, 2008: ITEM PULLED FROM THE AGENDA DUE TO NOTIFICATION ERROR
July 1, 2008: APPROVED CS-CO DISTRICT ZONING FOR TRACTS 1 AND 2 AND CS-H

DISTRICT ZONING FOR TRACT 3, WITH CONDITIONS AS STAFF RECOMMENDED.
[B. BAKER, T. RABAGO - 2ND](6-0) J. MARTINEZ, K. JACKSON — ABSENT
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ISSUES:

The Applicants are in agreement with the recommendations of the Staff and the Historic
Landmark Commission.

On May 19, 2008, the Historic Landmark Commission voted to recommend CS-H combining
district zoning for Tract 3. Please refer to the related case report prepared for the Historic
Landmark Commission.

On Tuesday, April 8, 2008, the Applicants, the Agents, the Chair of the Zoning and Platting
Commission, the Zoning case manager and the City’s Historic Preservation Officer visited
the property, in particular the ruins of Thomas F. McKinney’s first mill site in Travis County,
a dam, and a sluice channel. Following discussions with the Chair and City Staff, the
Applicants agreed to amend their request to include additional property area which consists
of one undeveloped lot at the corner of Terry Lane and East SH 71, three undeveloped lots on
Ellon Road and an unplatted tract. The mill site, dam and sluice channel are contained
within the boundaries of Tract 3 (2.24 acres in size) and include a 50-foot buffer area around
these areas. According to City information, nearly all of Tract 3 is within the 100-year
floodplain. Given the sensitivity of the historic area, Staff is recommending that motor
vehicle access from Ellon Road be prohibited.

As of May 2008, there is an active red tag on the property for exceeding the defined limits of
the site plan exemption. Although Watershed Protection and Development Review Staff
state that they do not object to processing of the zoning application for this property, the red
tag and the fiscal posting will remain in place until the native vegetation required on the
restoration plan has full coverage per the standards in the Environmental Criteria Manual.
Although winter rye has been planted, it is a temporary measure to serve as erosion control
until the native seeds germinate to provide permanent vegetative coverage. A final
inspection for compliance will be required prior to release of the red tag and fiscal. In
addition, no site plan approval for any other development will be issued until the red tag is
released.

On February 28, 2008, City Council approved an ordinance that adjusts the Colorado River
buffers. The goals of the Code Amendment are to protect the physical and ecological
integrity of the River, and preserve its recreational and economic value. The regulatory
improvements would establish the Critical Water Quality Zone (CWQZ) starting point of
buffer at the river’s ordinary high water mark, rather than the stream centerline. The width of
the CWQZ would be between 200 and 400 feet on land, depending on the 100-year flood
plain. The buffers will be applied at the time of site plan.

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:

The subject property contains a vacant concrete batch plant, undeveloped land and the ruins
of the Thomas F. McKinney’s first mill in Travis County, a dam, and a sluice channel.
Interim- rural residence (I-RR) and interim — single family residence — standard lot districts
were applied to the property upon its annexation into the City limits in September 2001. The
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property is located at the corner of State Highway 71 East and Terry Lane, extends to the
banks of the Colorado River and east to Ellon Road. There are apartments, single family
residence and an auto repair use on Terry Lane to the east (I-SF-2), and the U.S. Post Office,
a manufactured home park (I-SF-2) and a convenience storage facility (CS-CO) on the west.
The property also lies within Airport Overlay Zone — 3 (also known as the Y2 mile buffer
zone) which does not allow for new residential development to occur outside of recorded
final plats, municipal utility district boundaries or neighborhood plan combining district
boundaries. Commercial and industrial uses are permitted in the AO-3 Zone. Please refer to
Exhibits A and A-1.

The Applicant has requested general commercial services (CS) district zoning in order to
redevelop the property with unspecified commercial uses. Staff recommends CS-CO zoning
for Tracts 1 and 2 given that the property has access to a major arterial roadway with the
Conditional Overlay prohibiting vehicle storage in the context of its location across from the
Airport which is considered a gateway to the City; 2} is consistent with the surrounding
commercial properties, general land use character and uses permitted within Airport Overlay
Zone — 3; and 3) a maximum of 2,999 daily vehicle trips will limit development to maintain
acceptable traffic conditions on adjacent roadways and intersections, and prohibiting access
from Tract 2 to Ellon Road. The Staff is also recommending that the Applicant reserve
additional right-of-way along SH 71 East, consistent with TXDoT’s identified long term
needs, to be accomplished by way of Restrictive Covenant.

EXISTING ZONING AND LAND USES:

ZONING LAND USES

Site I-RR; I-SF-2 Vacant concrete batch plant; Undeveloped; Historic dam,
remains of mill house and sluice channel, known as
McKinney’s Mill

North | N/A Colorado River

South | AV Austin-Bergstrom International Airport

East SF-2; CS-CO Apartments; Single family residences; Three undeveloped
lots; Auto repair business; Construction sales and services

West I-RR; CS-CO Del Valle Post Office; Roofing company; Convenience
storage; Auto repair business; Manufactured home park

AREA STUDY: N/A TIA: Is not required
WATERSHED: Colorado River DESIRED DEVELOPMENT ZONE: Yes
CAPITOL VIEW CORRIDOR: No SCENIC ROADWAY: Yes, SH71
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATIONS:

511 — Austin Neighborhoods Council 627 — Onion Creek Homeowners Association

750 — Del Valle Association 774 — Del Valle Independent School District
786 — Home Builders Association of Greater Austin
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1005 - Elroy Preservation Association

SCHOOLS:

Page 4

1037 — Homeless Neighborhood Organization

This property is located in the Del] Valle Independent School District.

CASE HISTORIES:

NUMBER REQUEST COMMISSION CITY COUNCIL
C14-2008-0039 - I-RR to CS To Grant CS-CO Approved CS-CO with
Airport Self the CO for a max. of
Storage 300 trips (5-8-08).
C14-05-0017 - I-SF-2 to GR- To Grant GR-CO Approved GR-CO
Highway 71 CO with CO for 2,000

trips (4-7-05).
C14-04-0011 - I-SF-2t0 CS To Grant GR-CO Approved GR-CO
Frenchville with CO for 2,000
trips (3-11-04).
C14-01-0186 - I-SF-2; RR to LI | To Grant CS-CO Approved CS-CO with
State Highway 71 CO for a list of
East 3039 prohibited uses (5-16-
02).
C14-00-2060 - RR to GR To Grant GR-CO Approved GR-CO
Stamey Zoning with CO for trips (6-1-
00).

RELATED CASES:

A previous zoning application for the CS district was filed in 2006, but expired (C14-06-
0125 — Paul Keller Investments, Ltd.). Tract 1 includes Lot 23 of Glenbrook Addition
Section One recorded in May 1948 (C8-1948-1877), and Tract 2 is platted as Lots 17, 18 and
19 of Glenbrook Addition, Section Two, recorded in March 1949 (C81-1949-05.066). Please

refer to Exhibit B.

ABUTTING STREETS:

Name ROW | Pavement | Classification | Bicycle | Sidewalks Capital

Plan Metro

Highway 275 feet 120 feet Major Arterial No No Yes
71/Bastrop Divided -4
Highway lanes

COUNCIL DATE: June 18, 2008 ACTION: Item pulled from the agenda

July 24, 2008

due to notification error.
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ORDINANCE READINGS: 1*
ORDINANCE NUMBER:

CASE MANAGER: Wendy Rhoades
e-mail: wendy.rthoades@ci.austin.tx.us

PHONE: 974-7719

Page 5



ZONING EYHIBIT A

N /] SUBJECT TRACT ZONING CASE# C14-2007-0244
agiom ADDRESS: 2935 E SH 71 WB; 2901, 2903 &
% u u & ZONING BOUNDARY 2905 ELLON RD; 2936 TERRY LANE
SUBJECT AREA: 23.440 ACRES
[".7] PENDING CASE SRID. N7 & P17

MANAGER: W. RHOADES

RA 1S EKS
o . OPE TOR S ME This map has been produced by G.1.5. Services for the sole purpose of geographic reference.
1 = 400 No warranty is mada by the Cily of Austin regarding specific accurecy of completenass.
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SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The Staff recommendation is to grant general commercial services — conditional overlay (CS-
CO) combining district zoning for Tracts 1 and 2, with the Conditional Overlay prohibiting
vehicle storage use, limiting the number of daily trips to 2,999 and prohibiting motor vehicle
access to Ellon Road. The Staff recommendation is to grant general commercial services-
historic landmark (CS-H) combining district zoning for Tract 3.

If the requested zoning is granted, then 200 feet of right-of-way should be reserved from the
existing centerline of State Highway 71 in accordance with the Transportation Plan.

BASIS FOR LAND USE RECOMMENDATION (ZONING PRINCIPLES)

1. The proposed zoning should be consistent with the purpose statement of the district
sought.

The general commercial services (CS) district is intended predominantly for commercial
and industrial activities of a service nature having operating characteristics or traffic
service requirements generally incompatible with residential environments. The CS
district is best suited for uses located at intersections of arterial roadways or arterials with
collector status. The intention is to promote safe and efficient use of transportation
facilities.

The property has frontage on the westbound lanes of East State Highway 71, a major arterial.

2. Zoning changes should promote an orderly and compatible relationship among land uses.

Staff recommends CS-CO zoning, given: 1) the property is located on a major arterial
roadway; 2) it is consistent with the surrounding commercial properties, general land use
character and uses permitted within Airport Overlay Zone — 3; 3) it incorporates a 200-
foot wide buffer from the ordinary high water mark of the Colorado River, consistent
with a proposed Code Amendment; and 4) a 2,000 daily vehicle trip limitation will limit
development to maintain acceptable traffic conditions on adjacent roadways and
intersections. The Staff is also recommending that the Applicant reserve additional right-
of-way along SH 71 East, consistent with TXDoT’s identified long term needs, to be
accomplished by way of Restrictive Covenant.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

Site Characteristics

The subject property contains a vacant concrete batch company, historic dam and mill house,
known as McKinney Mill. The site is relatively flat and slopes to the north, towards the
Colorado River.

Impervious Cover
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The maximum impervious cover allowed by the CS zoning district would be 80%, which is
based on the more restrictive zoning regulations.

Environmental

The site is not located over the Edward's Aquifer Recharge Zone. The site is in the Desired
Development Zone. The site is in the Colorado River Watershed of the Colorado River
Basin, which 1s classified as a Suburban Watershed by Chapter 25-8 of the City's Land
Development Code. Under current watershed regulations, development or redevelopment on
this site will be subject to the following impervious cover limits:

Development Classification % of Net Site Area % with Transfers
Single-Family 50% 60%

(minimum lot size 5750 sq. ft.)

Other Single-Family or Duplex 55% 60%

Multifamily 60% 70%
Commercial 80% 90%

According to flood plain maps, there is a floodplain within the project boundary. Offsite
drainage should be calculated to determine the exact location of the boundaries. No
development is permitted in the Critical Water Quality Zone, while impervious cover is
limited to 30% in the Water Quality Transition Zone.

Standard landscaping and tree protection will be required in accordance with LDC 25-2 and
25-8 for all development and/or redevelopment.

At this time, site specific information is unavailable regarding existing trees and other
vegetation, areas of steep slope, or other environmental features such as bluffs, springs,
canyon rimrock, caves, sinkholes, and wetlands.

Under current watershed regulations, development or redevelopment on this site will be
subject to the following water quality control requirements:
=  Structural controls: Sedimentation and filtration basins with increased capture volume
and 2 year detentton.

At this time, no information has been provided as to whether this property has any pre-
existing approvals that preempt current water quality or Code requirements.

Transportation

The Austin Metropolitan Area Transportation Plan calls for a total of 400 feet of right-of-way
for HWY 71. Existing ROW is approximately 275°. If the requested zoning is granted, then
200 feet of right-of-way should be reserved from the existing centerline of HWY 71 in
accordance with the Transportation Plan. [LDC, Sec. 25-6-51 and 25-6-55)
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The Texas Department of Transportation has identified a long-term need for 400 feet of
right-of-way along E SH 71. The applicant is encouraged to reserve 200 feet of right-of-way
from the centerline of E SH 71. LDC, 25-6-54.

A traffic impact analysis was waived for this case because the applicant agreed to limit the
intensity and uses for this development. If the zoning is granted, development should be
limited through a conditional overlay to no more than 2,999 vehicle trips per day for the
entire 23.440 acres of land. If the cumulative total exceeds 2,999 trips per day, a TIA wiil
be required during the site plan application process in order to analyze site traffic impact on
the surrounding roadway system.

Water and Wastewater

The landowner intends to serve the site with City of Austin water and wastewater utilities.
The landowner, at his own expense, will be responsible for providing the water and
wastewater utility improvements, offsite main extensions, system upgrades, utility relocation,
and abandonment. The water and wastewater plan must be in accordance with the City of
Austin utility design criteria. The water and wastewater utility plan must be reviewed and
approved by the Austin Water Utility. All water and wastewater construction must be
inspected by the City of Austin. The landowner must pay the City inspection fee with the
utility construction. The landowner must pay the tap and impact fee once the landowner
makes an application for a City of Austin water and wastewater utility tap permit.

Compatibility and Building Standards

The site is subject to compatibility standards. Along the east property line, the following
standards apply:
e No structure may be built within 25 feet of the property line.
» No structure in excess of two stories or 30 feet in height may be constructed within 50
feet of the property line.
* No structure in excess of three stories or 40 feet in height may be constructed within 100
feet of the property line.
No parking or driveways are allowed within 25 feet of the property line.
In addition, a fence, berm, or dense vegetation must be provided to screen adjoining
properties from views of parking, mechanical equipment, storage, and refuse collection.
Additional design regulations (including compliance with Commercial Design Standards)
will be enforced at the time a site plan is submitted.

This site is within the Airport Overlay Zone AO-3. Development on this property is limited
by Chapter 25-13 of the Austin City Code. Airport hazards as defined in Federal Aviation
Regulations Part 77, as adopted by the City in Section 25-13-23, are prohibited. Noise level
reduction measures may be required for certain new structures. For more information,
contact Joe Medici, Airport Planner, 530-6563.



ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET

CASE NUMBER: C14H-2007-0244 HLC DATE: May 19, 2008
ZAP DATE: July 1, 2008

APPLICANT: City of Austin
HISTORIC NAME: McKinney's Mill
WATERSHED: Colorado River

ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE: Terry Lane (Tract 3 of the zoning

case).
ZONING FROM: I-RR; I-SF-2 to CS-H

SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the proposed zoning
change from Interim — Rural Residential (I'-RR) and Interim — Single Family
Residence Standard Lot to General Commercial Services — Historic Landmark (CS-
H) combining district zoning for Tract 3.

HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION: Recommended the proposed
zoning change from Interim Rural Residential (I'-RR) to Commercial Services —
Historic Landmark (CS-H) combining district zoning for Tract 3. Vote: 5-0 (Rosato,
Arend and Arriaga absent).

ZONING AND PLATTING COMMISSION ACTION:-
July 1, 2008: APPROVED CS-CO DISTRICT ZONING FOR TRACTS 1 AND 2
AND CS-H DISTRICT ZONING FOR TRACT 3, WITH CONDITIONS AS STAFF
RECOMMENDED.
[B. BAKER, T. RABAGO — 2NDJ(6-0) J. MARTINEZ, K. JACKSON —
ABSENT

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: The site consists of the ruins of Thomas F.
McKinney’s first mill in Travis County, a dam, and a sluice channel.

CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 24, 2008 ACTION:
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST 2ND 3RD ORDINANCE NUMBER:
CASE MANAGER: Steve Sadowsky PHONE: 974-6454

NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION: None

BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The site proposed for designation as a historic landmark includes the ruins of
Thomas F. McKinney's 1849 stone mill on an un-named creek near the Colorado
River in Del Valle, the dam on the creek, and a sluice channel, all constructed of
stone. Thomas F. McKinney was a pioneer settler in Travis County, eventually
building his homestead and grist mill at McKinney Falls on Onion Creek (now



McKinney Falls State Park). These ruins, with an inscription in an intact stone
reading “T.F.McKinney — 1849” are the earliest constructions associated with
McKinney in Travis County.

Architecture:

The site consists of the ruins of a stone mill on the east bank of an un-named creek
leading into the Colorado River, a stone dam on the creek and a stone-lined channel
above the dam. The site lies between Texas 71 and the Colorado River near the
intersection of Terry Lane and Ellon Road in Del Valle in southeast Travis County.

Historical Associations:

Thomas F. McKinney (1801-1873), born in Kentucky, began his business career
engaging in the trade from Santa Fe to Missouri in the 1820s. He came to Texas in
the early 1830s as one of Stephen F. Austin’s Old 300 Colonists, finally settling in
Galveston by the early 1830s. His long cotton and shipping business relationship
with Samuel May Williams in Galveston resulted in fortunes for both. The firm’s
ships constituted the Texas Navy in the Revolution, and McKinney served as the
senator from Galveston in the first Republic of Texas legislature. McKinney moved
to Travis County in 1849, having purchased over 39,000 acres of land out of the
Santiago Del Valle grant southeast of Austin on Onion Creek and the Colorado
River in 1839. An inscribed stone at the site indicates that he built this mill on an
un-named creek near the Colorado River in 1849. We do not know why this mill
failed, whether from lack of sufficient water power or if it was destroyed in a flood,
but McKinney built the grist mill which is now in McKinney Falls State Park in
1852. He built his two-story stone house near the new grist mill in 1853, and raised
thoroughbreds on Onion Creek, where he also built a racetrack. The Civil War and
its aftermath proved disastrous for McKinney; he died impoverished in 1873.

PARCEL NO.: A portion of 03153103010000

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A portion of Abstract 24, Del Valle Survey — field notes |
will be necessary for the delineation of Tract 3.

ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: Undetermined; land is undeveloped and in a critical
water quality zone.

APPRAISED VALUE: Undetermined

PRESENT USE: Undeveloped

CONDITION: Not applicable

PRESENT OWNER:
Keller Family Investments
P.O. Box 342349

Austin, Texas 78734

DATE BUILT: ca. 1849



ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS: The mill walls have collapsed, although the wall
facing the creek bed remains largely intact. The dam and sluice are intact.

ORIGINAL OWNER(S): Thomas F. McKinney (1839)

OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS: None.
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Death came to Thomas Freeman
McKinney during the night of Octo-
ber 2, 1873, at his home on Onion
Creek near Austin, He had lost &
long battle with kidney disease.
Colonel McKinney's Funeral was one
usually accorded a fallen patriot.
The entourage was met after cross-
ing the Colorado River and escorted
to the Capitol. Businesses and state
offices closed in observation of the
event, and prominent men spoke at
his graveside in Dakwood Cemetery.

Who was Thomas McKinney that
he should have been sa honored? He
s noted only briefly in Texas histary
acks, being overshadowed by the
Tore prominent Stephen F. Austin,
3am Houston, James W. Eannin and
Albert Sidney Johnston, some of
~hom were his friends. Yet, McKin-
1ey’s role. in early Texas history
{eserves recognition.

Born in Kentucky in 1801, Thom-
s McKinney had moved to Missouri
7y 1821. He entered the early over-
and trade with Santa Fe and Chi-
wahua and developed a trading
aterest in Mexican Texas. McKin-
1ey received a one-league grant as
e of Stephen F. Austin’s first 300
olonists, but settled for a time in
he Nacogdoches area. In the early
.B30s he had business dealings with

Aichel Menard and the sons of fared §|
roce, a wealthy planter on the Braz-

5. In 1834, McKinney entered into
parinership with Austin’s colonial
ecretary, Samuel May Williams,

+hich had far-reaching significance. 3

The firm of McKinney & Williams,

perating from their new warshouse i

nd wharf in Quintana at the mouth

£ the Brazos. developed a highly 3

uccessful mercantile operation.
‘hey led the way in establishing
writime commesce in Texas with
teamboats linking the Brazos plan-
itions and New Orleans. And their
usiness contacts and good ¢credit in
1e United States enabled them to
ecome the major financial backers
f the Texss revolt against Mexiro.
‘he firm tnvested more than

‘TOBER tes1
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by Barry Hutcheson, Parks Division

$150,000 and the partners spent
much personal time and effort to
insure the success of the newborn
Republic of Texas. They were never
fully reimbursed for their monetary
involvement.

In 1836 McKinney joined with
Menard and othersin the Galveston
City Company and laid out the island
city. The McKinney & Williams of-
fices moved there two years later,
adding a warehouse and wharf, land,
city lots and the Tremont Hotel 1o
their other business holdings.
McKinney also supported the ex-
pangion of railroad lines into Texas
and was involved in a short-lived
company which was granted the
Eirst railway charter in Texas.

McKinney was elected to repre-
sent Galveston as a senator in the
first Texas Legislature in 1846. By

-

this time his reputation was well
established. A solidly-built man
standing 510" with piercing gray
eyes, McKinney was known to be
quick to anger and slow to forgive.
Friends were friends and foes were
foes; there was almost no middle
ground. Bui despite his personal

forcefulness, he was unable as a
senator. or later as a representative
in the third legislature, to win sup-
port for canceling the state’s debt to
the firm of McKinney & Williams.
However, his legisative service in
Austin enabled him to finalize plans
For moving his home to Travis
County.

McKinney's land in Travis County
was part of a 10-league grant made
to Santiago del Valle in 1825 by the
government of Mexico, the arrange-
ments for which were handled by
Samuel Williams. The grant was
located in the southern corner of the
present county on the Colorado
River and Onion Creek. McKinney
had bought nine of the leagues,
including the junction of Williamsen
and Onion Creeks, in 1839 just be-
fore Austin was named as the per-
manent capital of the Republic. He

~ sold much of the property but main-

tained control of some 2,000 acres
around the falls of Onion Creek. It
was here that he made his perma-
nent home after 1850.

Apparently McKinney planned to
retire to his Travis County properiy
and “enjoy something of this world's
goods.” With a2 work force of t4
slaves he built a two-story stone
house, a gristmill and stock Facilities
for his purebred sheep, his cattle and
especially for his thoroughbred
race horses. The McKinney home-
stead soon became the center of a
small community of family and
friends. McKinney and his wife Anna
had no children, but they shared
their home with McKinney’s mother
and his aunt. Nearby iived two
brothers. a sister, in-laws, out-laws
and friends. The falls on Onion
Creek nearest the house came to be
called McKinney Falls, and the cross-
ing there frequently was used by
those visiting the McKinney home
for business and pleasure.

The 18608 were troubled times
for McKinney. In the unrest which
eventually led to civil war, he op-
posed the secession of Texas from

7
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the Union probably because of his
business ties. However, once the
break was made, he supported the
Confederacy and served as a pur-
chasing lEl‘lt for the government.
His speculation in cotton during this
period ultimstely was disastrous. At
the end of the war, McKinney was
left without his slaves, but appar-
ently continued his stock-raising
activities. In 1869 a massive flood on
P! . d

Onion Creek wipedout his gristmill.
By the end of the decade he was fail-
ing in health.

McKinney died in the upstairs
bedroom of his Onion Creek home
in 1873, Heleft an estate of $5,000,a
small Eraction of his previous worth.
His ranchland, used to back his cot-
ton investments, began to be sold
offin 1878, and in 1885 Anna McKin-
ney sold the homestead itself. She

died In 1896 and was burled beside
Thomas in Oakwood.

The McKinney homestead and
some of the nearby acreage was pur-
chased by James Woods Smith and
combined as his ranch. The prop-
erty, worked primarily by tenants,
remained in the Smith family for the
next two generations. In 1970,
grandson J.E. Smith donated approx-
imately 630 acres to the TexasParks




and Wildlife Department for use as
a state park,

The donation was fortuitons both
for park visitors and for the memory
of Thomas McKinney. When prelim-
inary research revesled the signif-
icance of the site, a new dimension
was added to the park’s develop-
ment. Interpretive efforts at the
parkin exhibits and educational pro-
grams include information on

B.1-12
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McKinney and his Onion Creek
ranch. Since It opened in 1978,
McKinney Falls State Park has of-
Fered visitors not only outdoor rec-
reation, but also an opportunity to
see the stabillzed remnants of the
house, gristmill, stone fences and
horse trainer’s cabin from the
McKinney ranch and to walk the
cypress-lined banks of Onion Creek
which once were so famillar to
McKinney, his family and his friends.

The search for more Information
on Thomas McKinney goes on. A
comprehensive study is being con-
ducted by Dr. Margaret Henson,

. whose book on Samuel May Wil

The McKinney homestred ow Onica Creck
e thr conter of & small communily of family
and friemds, This 1866 photo shows Themes
and Anna McKixaey and Miss Ada Bradley
with some of the Ioroughbred horses McKia-
uey kept on his preperty. Today, visitors te
McKinney Falls Siate Park cam see the stabi-
lized remnants of McKinney's hios-stary bame.

lams was published in 1976. The
careful collection of long-scattered
documents will shed new lighton an
Individual who until recently has
been relegated to a back shelf in
Texas history-—Thomas Freeman
McKinney. =e

Prals sovurtewy Barker Yaxas Hissory Canter




B.l-13

Austin History Center

THOMAS FREEMAN McKINNEY

Thomas Freeman McKinney was born 1n Lincoln County, Kentucky, on November J,
1807, the son of Abraham and Eleanor Prather McKinney. He "recefved a fair

common English education for the times, writing and spelling with grammatical
correctness.” The family moved to I111nois in 1818 and to Missourd in 182].

As a young man, McKinney en aged in overland trading from Sants Fe to Chihuahua
to Natchitoches on the Red River. Using pack mules or horses, he traded cotton
and calico to Mexico and brought back mules, horses, broodmares, and some
specie. The complete trip required twelve months over wild country with fre-
quent encounters with Comanches, Kiowas, Apaches, and Mexfcan brigands,

In 1824 McKinney enrolled as one of Stephen F. Austin'’s "old three hundred*
go'lcnists and received title to one league of land in present Brazos County,
exas.

By 1830 McKinney had abandoned overland trade and turned to trading between
New Orleans and the Neches River by keel boats. In 1831 he resided {n Nacogdoches
and was married to Nancy Watts.

Mckinney & Wil)iams

In 1833 Mckinney and M.B. Menard were partners in the mi11fng and Tumber business
n Liberty County. In the period 1833-34, Thomas McKinney and Samuel May %711ams
entered into a partnership and founded the mercantile house of McKinney & Willfams,
temporar{ly located at Brazoria. The partners, who bought and sold goods for
comissfon, fntended to move their operation to the west bank of the Brezos River
to Tand that had been donated by Stephen Austin. On this narrow spit where the
Brazos empties into the Gulf of Mexico, they built a warehouse, wharf, and rest-
dences - the nucleus of the new tawn of Quintana, McKinney bought and transported
commodities for the new firm while Williams handled the financial affairs. In
June 1834, McKinney moved to Velasco, across the river from Quintana, to super-
vise construction of the Quintana bufldings. Williams went to New Orleans to
purchase a shallow-draft steamboat to use for commercial shipping on the Brazos.
Hearwhile, McKinney bought a schooner, which foundered on a sandbar at the mouth
of the Braxos and was Jost.

The firm of McKinney & Willfams can be said to be the founder of mar{time commerce
in Texas for ft established the first line of small steam vessels which ran up the
Brazos, often as far as Wash1ngton-on-the-Brazos, carrying merchandise and supplies
to the colonists and bringing down produce for shipment to New Orleans, The fim
handled a general line of goods including grocery staples, printing presses, cotton
gins, and lumber. As they prospered, they launched into other enterprises, some
of which were controversial.
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In 1833, McKinney's friend, Michel B. Menard, conceived a plan to acquire the
eastern end of Galveston Island. He arranged for Juan N. Seguin to petition

the State for the site as his reward for service against the Indians. Then
Henard, as "agent" for Sequin, ordered a survey of the 4,605 acres. McKimmey
obtained a one-half interest in the project for his firm by paying Menard $300.

In 1836, Menard and McKinney organized the Galvesten City Company. With other
investors, they petitfoned the Texas Congress to recognize Menard's claim so

they could begin development. The public labelled this proposed transaction a
“land steal.® 1In that same year, McKinnay was one of nine men who signed a
petitfon to the Congress of the Texas Republic for the "first charter granted

for a railroad not only fn Texas, but west of the Mississ{ppf.” The line, named
"The Texas Raflroad, Havigation, and Banking Company”, had a short and tempestuous
1ife. In the worldwide banking panic of 1837, it and many other raflroad projects
were wiped cut. McKinney continued to advocate the construction of raflrocad lines
to radiate {n al? directions from Galveston.

McKinney & Willfams transferred 1ts central operation from Quintana to Galveston
in 1838. In addition to the three-story warehouse and long wharf, they owned
large tracts of land, city lots, sawnills, steamboats, and the Tremont Hotel in
Galveston. McKinney and Willfams, aided by Willfams' brother H.H, Wi1lfams, built
up one of the most successful commission-merchant firms of the Republic. The
firm broadened fts base and began to export products also. “In thus laying the
foundations of a mar{time comnerce {nternatfonal In scope, McKinney & Williass
was 3 dec{sive factor fn the economic development of Galveston and Texas.”

Samuel Will{ams, his brother Nat, McKinney, and his brother James composed
McKinney & Williams after 1840. Wi1liams petitioned the Texas Congress for
permissfon to fssue small dencmination paper notes through McKinney & Williams to
ease the lack of circulating money. In 1841 the firm was authorized to issue
$30,000 1n notes to circulate as money. The notes were secured by $60,000 fn

* real property consisting of slaves and land belonging to the four men.

Henry Howell Williams (Samuel's brother) had been involved in many of the business
dealings of McKinney & Willlams, 1ncluding the Galveston City Company, and had
{nvested heavily in Texas real estate. He bought the comiiission business from

:cﬁ?m and Williams 1n 1842 and made 1t a branch of H.H, Witl{ams 3 Company of
altimore.

In Dacember 1847 the Commercial and Agricultural Bank opened with Samuel Williams
as president. Branches were founded Tn Brownsville, New Orlesns, and New York
City. An anti-bank faction in Texas, distrustful of banks and gaper monay ,
bitterly opposed the bank and Htigation was begun against the bank's charter.
The bank survived a decade of legal attacks before ﬁna'll{ being outlawed by the
Texas Supreme Court in 1859, shortly after Williams' death.

The Texas Revolution

Thomas McKinney and Samuel Williams played a vital part in the Texas Revolution, a
part so fmportant as to lead mn{ to say, "without the efforts of McKinney and
Hilliams, Sam Houston might not have won his decisive victory at San Jacinte {{.e.,

a2-
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without thefr aid the Texas army would have lacked arms, provisfons, and
clothes.”

McKinney was a supporter of the General Consultation which convened at San Felipe
de Austin, October 16, 1835, to consider the position Texas should take toward
Santa Anma‘s dictatorship. The General Consultation decided to remain within

the Kexican nation and to establish a provisional government empowered to take up
arms against Santa Anna and restore the Mexican Constitutfon of 1824, This pro-
visional goverrment lacked revenue and had to vely on genercus and patriotic
citizens for funds. In 1835 McKinney and Williams rated higher than their govern-
ment in financfal standing and organizational ability.

The General! Consultation granted McKinney and Williems "Letters of Marque®. With
NcKinney acting as fiscal agent and Willfams in the East to secure support and
Supplies, they threw themselves into the breach. Their ships, the San Felipe and
the Laura helped protect the Texas coast untf] an act was passed esTablishing a
navy. IlEl(inne{ attempted to negotiate a loan with the City of New Orleans to aid
the provisional government in 1ts struggle against Sants Arna. When this failed,
he became responsible in the name of McKinney & Will{ams for purchases of army
supplies. Financing was done largely on credit; and as a result, McKinney &
Wi1l{ams and other business houses were in financfal strafts,

When the fighting was over, the new Republic of Texas found ftself approximately
$150,000 in arrears to the two men, In a letter to the Texas Legislature dated
October 4, 1871, McKinney stated, “"These advances were made by using our credit,

for we were on'l{ rich in credit and necessarily left us rufnously involved...which
reguined about 12 years of service and personal exertions. These advances...were
made when we were young...and we did not regard them as hardships while Texas was
young, poor, and feeble and was greatly benefitted in her time of need...{The records
show that not one cent was ever charged for his personal services). But now that
Texas 1s vigorous and strong and your petitoner with less vigor and wordly goods...
deems 1t not improper to ask that you appoint a committee to iInvestigate from the
records of the government what s due us in good conscienca...if any pay be upon

my half the interest durfng my 1ifetime and that of my wife Anna, and at the death
of the survivor consider the debt cancelled.” The only money McKinney ever secured
from the State was $40,729 1n 1856. However, he and Williams realized only $8,000
each because McKinney had made loans contfngent upon successful collection of the
sum, and the remainder was allocated to cover an earlier indebtedness. McKinney con-
tinued to press the Legislature for the rest of the money, and in 1871 and 1873, the
State did recognize a scaled fndebtedness of $16,942 but was unable to pay the sum.

Travis County Ranch

In 1839, Menard had sold nine leagues of the Santiago del Valle land grant along the
Colorado River to McKinney. The raw village of Austin (then known as Waterloo) lay
n'lor? the Colorado River 2 short distance from the land belonging to McKinney and
Wi11iams. Prior to the relocation of the seat of government to Austin, McKinney had
been sel1ing portions for less than one cent an acre. He confidently expected the
value would rise with the establfshment of Austin as the capital,

3
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Samuel Will{iams was elected to the first Texas congress (Fourth Cmms) that
met in Austin in November 1839. One spectal {nterest bi11 supported by Killiams
was a petition for freedom for McKinney's slave Cary. Cary presented a letter
to the legisiature certifying that Cary had been McKinney's slave for ten years
and had served him and Texas fa{thfully during thet time. Cary had been an
express rider during the Revolution and had accumulated sufficient funds to buy
himself and his family. Only Cary and one other slave were emancipated because
of their service tn the Republic, and Cary had tc post a $1,000 bond to insure
that he would not become a public charge.

McKinney began liquidating his interests in Galveston with the intent of moving
to his ranch fn Travis County. About 1849 McKinney moved to his homestead on
Onfon Creek and 1ived in a double log house. McKinney pursued his agricultural
interests and engaged in stock raising. According to one source: “Texas thorough-
breds had for their godfather or pioneer the late Colone]l Thomas F. McKinney, who
did more than any man §n the State to introduce and develop pure-blooded horses
and cattle.® NcKinney bred, trained, and raced thoroughbred race horses on his
onfon Creek ranch. He constructed a race track - "the native stones of the soil
made fit the feet of some of the first Texas blooded race horses." He employed
a horse trainer, John Van Hagan, who 1ived in a small rock cabin, the remains
of which stand in McKinney Falls State Park today. In the 1850's McKinnay exper-
1m$nmd with improving the quality of wool by introducing sheep from other coun-
ries.

In 1852 McKinney completed a grist mi11 below his house on Onfon Creek. The Texas
State Gazette of July 10, 1852, states, “We are plessed to hear that the Honorable
Thomas F. McKinney has erected an elegant flouring mill on Onion Creek, about four
miles from the city, and is prepared to manufacture flour of a superior quality...
Up to the present time, a11 the flour used in Western Texas has been imported...Ne
hope now to see this drawback arrested, in giving ample encourgagement to the public-
spirited efforts of Mr. McKinney to supgiy among us &n all important improvement."
Upstream from the mil1 and just above the upper edge of McKinney Falls, a dam was
constructed to divert water to the mill. Some reports state that the mill also pow-
ered stone and Tumber saws,

The construction of the home for McKinney and his second wife, Anna Gibbs (they were
married in 1842 in Galveston), was begun about 1853, It {s reported that McKinney
had a slave named Sterling who was a skilled stonemason. The Timestone for the

house came from Onion Creek...The Time content of the mortar, ebtained ﬂn?" 1imestone ,
was burned zbout one-half mile south of the site, Oak, ¢Im, sycamore, and cotton-
wood were used n construction. All the framing timbers, sheathing, flooring, and
shingles were cut and sized at McKinney's woodlot 1n Bastrop County.

The 1850 Travis County Census 1ists McKinney as a stockraiser with 14 slaves and
$10,000 worth of real estate in Travis County. In the 1B60 Census six free inhab-
{tants-Thomas, Anna, Thomas' mother and Aunt, Minerva Fannin, and the horse trainer
John Van Magan - and 21 slaves are entered as residents of the homestead. McKinney's
personal wealth is quoted at $40,900 and his real estate value at $48,000.

4
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McKinney continued to take an active role in polftics. He served fn the First,
Third, and Seventh Legislatures, and was a Travis County Commissioner for several
years,

As 1t became more and more evident that cfvil war could not be avoided, McKinney
wrote a friend,”...that he hoped to 1ive out his 1ife in quietude rather than fn
Revolution." McKinney opposed secessfon, but was not as stubborn an nt as
meny Travis County Unfonists. He wes defeated in his bid for the mnm Legisla-
ture possibly because of this Unfonist leanfng. This antf-secessionfst attitude
$termed more from his business {nterests than from humanitarfan reasons. Simeon
Hart, assigned by the Confederate Treasury Department to buy cotton in Texas,
named McKinney an agent to buy cotton and hire wagon transport. The cotton trade
was chaotic and competitive, and purchasing agents and jurisdictions overlapped.
McKinney was involved in personal and political entanglements stemming from this
confused cotton situatfon. McKinmey, who was a tough, candid “horsetrader®, was
outraged by the rampant corruption in the cotton trade.

The McKinney homestead had always been a bustling site, with weekend horse races
and neighbors bringing their grains to the grist mi11 for grinding. In 1864
meetings to resolve conflicting State and Confederate interests in cotton and con-
scription took place in the house. The Governor of Texas and representatives of
the other Confederate States were present at these sessfons.

Final Days

Little 1s known of McKinney's final years, except that he died a poor man, He had
invested hcav‘ta: in the cotton market, and this speculation ruined him. To add to
his problems, the grist mi1] was destroyed by flood in 1869, Until his final days,
he attempted to recefve at least the interest on the monfes owed him by the State.
One account states, *Time and rheumstism slowed his energies and ability to make
money.” Thomas Freeman McKinney died on October 2, 1873. On that day a meeting
was held in the Mayor's Office in Austin to make arrangements for the reception of
the remains of McKinney and the funeral. A committee was inted to handle the
arrangements, and they offered the following resolution: at during the funeral
of Col. Thomas F. McKinney, on the signal of the to‘lling of the ¢city bell, the dif-
ferent departments of the State government, and the business houses he requested to
close and the citizens to meet the remains of Col. McKinney.” “The following 1s the
program of the commi{ttee or arrangements: “The committee of arrangements, with mil1-
ftary, will meet the remains at Cunningham & Thompson’s ferry, at 1 o'clock p.m. and
Proceed to the Capftol. Judge B.C. Franklin then pronounced a mast touching eulogy
.-.He had known him Tong and well, and away back in tryfng days when the deceased
had 1iberally given of his fortune and services to the needy and struggling Republic.”
HeKinney was buried in what is now Oakwood Cemetery fn Austin. s wife, Anna, was
in 1896 and 4is buried next to her husband.

Carolyn Scheffer
1978
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MCcKINNEY FALLS

The Ranch Home of Thomas F. McKinney,
Pioneer Texas Entrepreneur

By MARGARET SWETT HENSON

TEXAS STATE
HISTORICAL ASSOCIATION



B.1-21

[Pt et e 1 et o “ .
Austin’ History Center

McKpavey FaLts

Taxas after the Battle of San Jacinto and in August 1835 was
Ewﬁ!&&ﬂiﬂgnaw.inﬁu&gﬁisﬁo
cabinet of President Mirabeau B. Lamar and invested in a Brazos
gvgﬁmagn_g.uggagius
18408, Mac served as cne of his agents. In May 1846, Johnston
became Colonel of the Pirst Texas Rifte Voluntsers, and Eliza
_ofﬁganﬁin%&og%%ﬁgéﬂs
with friends. Mac and Arma invited a lively group to visit their

home dose to the beach. The young women rode the McKirmey

horees on the beach by moontight, spent the night, and enjoyed
playing the planc with Pinckney Fannin, who lived with the
%B&m.ﬁu%ggﬁﬁn.—%ﬁ-ﬁ
bathing” to cool off during the hot summer. Major Philip N.
uwg‘-ropia.w&.ﬁgg:r-asug
forbada his pretty young wife to go into the water, but Eliza
_%gaﬂaggng?maﬁ\gsgn
skirts, held hands and waded knee-deep into the waves, When
Martha Barbour became confident enough to let the waves splash
over her, she went to town and bought a rubberized bathing cap
like the others wore. Martha Hopkins Basbour was the grand-

; daughter of Samuel Hopkins, alde to George Washington; she

-Sqonim.rnnssn_o.d—o.nn.nosz _sunn?BGroqnﬁ_b
Galveston.® :

Thuy, four years after their marriage, Gelveston soclety was
comfortable with Mac and Anna and the scandal receded. Soon,
however, the McKinneys sbandoned the easy pleasant lifestyle of
Galveston Island for Onion Creek in Travis County. Instead of
%annaag%%nﬁ.ﬁﬂ_&zs%n
water of the creek and the upper and lower waterfalls and hunt
coyotes while riding around the hills. Gregarious people, the
Eggwu%uuﬂk_wug&qgusg
hill country ranch fust as they had in Galveston.

i

3.
McKINNEY FALLS RANCH,
1847-1859: A GROWING
FamiLy COMPOUND

THE RANCH BEGAN IN 1847 when Mac’s brothwr, James Prather
McKinney, moved his family from Galveston to Onion Creek.
James was eighteen years younger than Mac, the next to youngest
of the nine living children of Abraham and Nelly. In 1837 at age
cighteen James had joined McKinney and Wiliams at Quintana as
nwunsn;gﬁngwﬁ%ngggnﬁ
u-:m—.ﬁuonmﬂvsgg.m_&iiﬂmsgn-@uaugl
E?E%E&Egﬁisnﬁﬂnﬁg
through mid-1839, when their first child was born. They then
moved to Galveston, where James continued to work for firm until
it was sold to Henry Williams. Between 1842 and 1847, James
helped tend to his brother’s scattered property, collecting rents,
?«Eﬁﬁnga&%gaggﬁsgr
had three children when they settled in their home niong
Willlamscn Creek, a lesser stream that emptied into Ordon Creek
near the upper falls.!

Mac transferred $9,000 in slaves and livestock to James as pay-
ment for his past services with McKinney and Williams. Five adult
blacks and four children accompanied the caravan to Travis
County and helped the herders drive the three stallions, seven
mares, three hundred head of cattle, and seven hundred sheep
and goats that Mac had kept pastured in Fort Bend and other
mainland counties along the way. Mac had begun breeding
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imported sheep in Fort Bend County in 1840—Bakewells from
England, Merinos from Vermont, and a croes of Merinos and
Southdowns from Ohio. He cvossed them with Mexican stock, but
they did not thrive in the humid weather. He correctly surmised
that the sheep would do better on the Onion Creek propesty. By
1850, Jamnes had 60 acres under cultivation and owned 1,400 hun-
dred more acres in the tract where he kept 40 horses, 15 mules, 14
oxen, and grazed 80 cattle and 125 sheep,!

Mac had problems with creditors, and in 1848 he placed the
remaining 3,800 acres in his De) Valle tract in Anna’s name to pro-
tect it. Texas community property laws, adapted from Mexican
law, not only gave wives one-half of the property acquired during
marriage, but also allowed married women to hold property in
their own names, a privilege not available in most states at that
time. In 1848, the Travis County tax asseasor valued absentee-
owner Anna’s Onion Creek acreage at $8,220, including three
alaves, four horses, 170 head of cattle, and ane wagon. James man-
aged the entire property. James’s property that year was assessed
at 38,603 for 2,158 ncres, siaves, and Hvestock.!

Galvestonlans again sent McKinney to the Second and Third
Legislatures (1847-1850) but as a member of the House of
Representatives, where he served on the finance committes, an
assignment he no doubt solicited. Texas had retained its public
lancls and its public debt when It was annexed fn 1845, but the
::::: te lacked the means to pay debts stemming from the
Republic, including the large sum owed the firm of McKinmey and
Williams. After a public meferendum in November 1850, the state
ogreed (o accept $10 million from the United States in exchange
for a somewhat nebulous claim to New Mexico’s territory east of
??ngggg%gga
Texas and also provided funds to pay off many of Texzs's credi-
tors stemming from the Revolution. McKinney, of course, hoped
that he could at long last recover the $99,000 owed to McKinney
B&EEG&!&E&EL&E«%E
Santa Anna. Six years later, in 1856, the legislatots appropriated a
scaled-back amount of $40,729 for the firm, but as McKinney
explained to his former partner, they each received enly $8,000—

McKpavzy FAuLs

the rest was for "loans” to thoae who he Iped pasa the measure.*

During these years Mac remained a resident of Galveston and
was involved in a number of business activities when not atbend-
ing the legiolature. He made several trips to New Orleans accerd-
ing to the passenger lists published in the Galveston Weekly News
and scattered references in the correspondence of his former part-
ner. He acquired Menard’s interest in: their sawmill on the Trinity
River and shipped iumber to a Houston merchant McKinney,
Williams, and Menard were members of a Galveston committee in
December 1848 that planned the Galveston-Brazas Canal, a pri-
vate venture that was under way in 1850, but numerous bank
cave-ins hampered its success. Both Brazos River planters and
Galveston merchants hoped a canal parallel to the Gulf from the
river through the marshes and Galveston's West Bay would pro-
vide saler passage for cotton shipments; the treacherous sandbars
at the mouth of the Brazos caused many vessels to go aground
and wreck, which resulted in high insurance rates. McKinney had
also contracted with Galveston County’s commissioners court in
1846 to bulld a private wagon bridge from Teichman’s Polnt on
the island to Virginia Point on the mainland (the present cause-
way); financial difficulties prevented construction but he retained
the privilege through 1866. By that time, however, a railroad
bridge had been completed at that site in 1859, which lessened the
need for a wagon bridge.?

Between 1850 and 1852, Mciinney built his stone house and a
gristmill on Onion Creek just below the homesite. Ox teams
hauled heavy cypress and cedar timbers from a stand of trees on
Sam Williams's land in Bastrop County. The mill, intended to pro-
duce income, was a priority, Mac created a dam for a miflpond
and a diversionary canal through the step-down limestone ledge
and the outflow lava rock from the ancient eruption from the Pilot
fulls. Inside the wheelhouse, the water tumned & four-foot in diam-
eter metal-and-wood horizontal turbine that provided the power
to turn the grindstones; the water returned to the creek by a tail-
race beneath the mill. The Austin Texas Stale Gazelte noted on July
10, 1852, that “the Honorable Thomas F. McKinney has erected an
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aced oo handwritten notes by Reynolds K. Lowry, c
1940. The wres shown is & detad] from a larger map.

1. Thoenas P. and Anna C. McKinaey home st McKinney
Palls on Onion Cresk, eight miles south of Asstin.

2. McKinewy Falls st MeKinneys® home about 300 fect
south of the house and about 250 feet below where
Willinmson Cresk Sows into Ordon Creek.

3. Rematns of the old mil) on the north bank of Onlen and
not mere than 250 feet from the falls. The mill was
destroysd by a Bood in 1865,

4 House ootupied by R. W. Lowry when be first came
to the McKinaey home from Virginis in 1872 This
building was not more than 350 feet from the horss
trabner’s cabin.

5. Slave graveyard on the east bank of Williamson Cresk
near the mouth of Williamson Creek where it empties
fnto Onicn Creel.

6. A large tenant house where the McKinney slaves
Bved.

7. Horse trainer's home—a large two-room etone
dwelling with a six-fool fireplace in the south room.

8. Upper falls on Onion Cresk. ;
9. “Bob Field," s tract farmed by 2 black nun named Bob
Holbman,

10. The jenny pasture lay wast snd south of Bob Field.
13. Site of

Bridge.
12. Winter ground of Mckinney thoroughbreds (not

shuren on this detail),

13. Site of Colorado River bridge.

14. Area (se# x's on map) where Thomas and Anna
McXinney rode for pieasure and haumted wolves and

15. Rinard Creck Is a of Ondon Creek enttrely
situated within the Santiago del Valle grant. Tha
McKinneys referved to it ax Marble Creek.

16. The McKinnwys’ private racatrack on the bank of
Ondon Creek half a mile from hosss trainer John Van,
Hagen's cabin,

17. Home fiwo log cabiny) of McKinney servant Lataro
Garma

18 Temporary honw of Dr. Josephus Stainer befors he
margied and moved to the west bank of Onbon Creek.,
19. Carl, Texes, 2 small settlement.

20, Bluff on the eatt bank of Onlon Creek.

21. The site of the red circniay Hime kiln on the west bank
of Onjon Crawk below Falls.

22 Buxzard Roost. No cannection to the MdCinneys.
2. Piiot Knob, the remains of an extinct voloano.

24. The two-story horse barn for the thorough-
m.nl:.?zso feet west of the big house and near
where Wilkixmson Creek flows into Onlon.

Z5. Not Induded In Reynokds Lowry notes,

26. Dl Valle, Texas, established mid-18700.

Mv;ndmm,h‘l Texes Stide Lidrary and Archives
Comminsion.
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elegant flouring mill on Onian Creek four miles from the city and
E%EE:EE%!%&REQ\EFE
aﬁiggmi?q%g&%!%&
avoiding high-priced Imported flour, The mill, which could grind
all sorts of grain, operated until a flood in 1869 destroyed the
machinery? The flood waters atong the creek did not reach the
McKinney residence or the large bam for the thoroughibreds on
the hilL

Details about the building of Mac's house are lacking and infor-
mation reties on archaeological investigations conducted in 1974.
‘The house was built with soft native limestone quarried down-
stream along Ondon Creek; the blocks were cut with a circular saw
and then shaped to size with chisel and ax. The floor joists, beams,
rafiers, and flooring were cypress or cedar, as were the door and
window frames and the shakes for the roof. Six square pillars
exteruded from the ground to support the secand-story porch roof.
The interior walls andl ceilings were plastered and the Areplaces
were of uncut limestone.

The house was a one-room-deep reciangle (approximately forty
by twenty feet) with three rooms on each floor accessed from a
ten-foot-wide covered porch both upstairs and down. The gal-
leries also served s outdoor living epace in pleasant weather. A
wide stairway paralle] with and attached to the south exterior wall
gggaﬁngnoﬁgﬁunimoﬁ.ggg
a door to the porch and the center room also had a window on the
gallery. Windows on the north and east provided cross ventila-
tion, but the west wall appeans to have had ro openings. The weat
ro0ms were about seventeen feet square, the center roomis about
twelve by seventeen, snd the east rooms about nine by seventeen.
A double fireplace formed a portion of the stone wall dividing the
center and east rooms and the two had a connecting inside door
perpendicular to the north wall. The fireplaces and the door were
repeated on the second floor.”

The McKinneys had lived comfortably in Galveston and dould-
less brought their wood cooking stove and Anna’s piano to their
new hame. The oil painting of Sir Archy, the Virginia thorough-
bred, hung on the wall and when there was company Anna used

b

- HA i, ..._r......”.. |...n..a...|..u” . M.M..P..._..rm.__.”..”.r.u.rm...!..__'ﬂ

The cabin of fobn Van Hagen, Thomss McKisuvey's horse irainer, 1903, Phologrgh
by Reynolds K. Lowry, courtesy Tecas Stale Library and Archives Conmiszion.

china and silver she had inherited from her family, Wardrobes,
bureaus, and trunks held the best clothing, including & yellow silk
ball gown Mac brought Anna from New Otleans. According to
family lore, she wore the gown o Gov. E. M. Pease’s inaugural
ball end danced with Sam Houston.!

The five slave houses that the 1860 census enumerator listed
were probably on the north side of the house. An annotated 1940s
map by Mac’s great-grandnephew, Reynolds Lowry, who was
bom in the house in 1876, shows an oblong perpendicular to the
residence in the forty-acre field labeled “commodious tenant
house for negroes.” A two-story horse bam for the thoroughhreds
lay along the ridge overlooking the mouth of Williamson Creek
about 250 feet west of the McKinney residerce. On the south side
of the house toward the creek were two sixteen-feet-deep stone
cisterns Hned with martar; the remains of metal pipes indicate that
rainwater from the roof was furmeled into the cistemns.' No evi-
dence of a well or pump suggests that bathing and clothves wash-
ing, especially during dry spells, probebly took place in the creek.

While the pampered thoroughbreds had their bamn and special
pastures, the ordinary breeding stock was canfined within stacked
stone fances, one as high as five feet, on the south side of Onlon

28
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Cresk. A portion of a corral, zbout eighty by two hundred and
gggsﬂ-zﬂgg&?mﬂr?g
stone house where horse trainer John Van Hagen lived was in that
area too. Van Hagen worked MrKinney's horses from about 1852
until the early 1870s. His srug house, about twenty-nine by seven-
teen feet of mortared stone blocks, had a cedar-shingled 1oof and a
stone fireplace. It might have been used by the McKinneys or

.gguggeﬁngﬁglng

Across Onion Creek in a flat area between it and Williamson
Creek was the McKinney training track, where some races took
Eﬁﬂgﬂggiﬂ.giﬁsgvgmﬂss
McKinney mules while the rich grassland near the mouth of
gnﬁrig-gag?n?g.
Mac also provided land for the Travis County Racing
Association’s track near the Cojorado River southeast of the
zsggnmﬂgxtﬂgﬁns;&wgug
In the 1850e. The land west and south of the stone corrals and
ga&é?iﬁgﬂh«oirﬂanﬁ!gi

their friends rode horseback while hunting coyotes along

Cottonmouth and Rinard (later Marble) creeks.»

In 1852 the McKinneys resumed caring for Minerva Fannin
trﬂgiroiﬂurnﬁ!mga&g_gmﬂnﬁiﬁ-ns
strong sixteen-year-old impaired young women, Pinckney Pannin,
her beautiful and well-educated aister, had died in Galvéston in
1847. One of the McKirney slaves was assigned to watch Minerva
until she wap accepted at the new Austin Lunatic Asylum in 1861,
where she remained until her death in either 1893 or 1897.n

Egﬁﬁaggeﬂﬁgqg
ers from 1852 to 1856 and James followed hm from 1857 to 1860 to
Egﬁ?ﬁ.gﬁig.ggsﬂgﬁn
improving local roads. Property owners had to fumnish labor for
u&gggﬁggugoﬂ-aaﬂﬂngs
the Seventh Lagislature, which opened in November 1857, The
session was lively and unsettling with talk of secession. United
miﬁggmgragﬂmgwugg
in 1854 when he voted against the Kansas-Nebraska Act, which
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permitted slavery to-expand north and west of Missourl contrary
to the 1820 Missouri Compromise. As a lame duck senator,
Houston ran for Texas governor in 1857 and was defeated. Mac,
an ardent Democrat, still supported his old friend, who won the
govemor’s race in 1859.0

The increasing tension in Missouri and Kansas over the slavery
lssue caused McKinney to urge his mother and siblings to leave
Missouri and move to Onion Creek. His sistec Eupheqnia, her hug-
band James Walker Austin, and thelr seven children arrived by
wagon train in October 1857, Austin built his home on 250 acres in
the Del Valle tract just east of present State Highway 261 and
south of the Bergstrom Air Force Base, which in the late 1990s
became Austin’s new airport. The following spring, Mac went to
Missouri and brought his mother and the family of his brother
Charles to Texas. Seventy-seven-year-old Eleanor Prather
McKinney not enly survived the jolting two-month joumney by
wagon, but lived seven more years until her death in 1865. In 1859
Heanor McKimmey's seventy-five-year-old sister, Elizabeth Prather
Givens, joined the families on Onion Creek. Her son, Capt.
Newton Curd Givens, a gradunte of West Point and a veteran of
the Mexican War, was ill with tuberculosis in San Antonio, where
he died in March 1859, Givens’s childless widow soon marded M.
T. Johnson and moved to Fort Worth. The McKinney ranch family
compound increased again when the widow of Mac’s cousin
Thomas Prather, son of Stephen, arrived from San Augustine with
her children. Except for the two elderly women, each family
acquired a small tract and had its own home,»

Although content with his family neatby, the increasing talk
about secession disturbed McKinney. Like his friend Sam
Houston, McKinney was a unionist in sentiment, but state loyalty
and economie survival forced him to make difficult decisions efter
Abtaham Lincoln was elected president in 1860.

4,
THE MCKINNEYS: WARTIME
AND THE AFTERMATH,
1860-1896

THE 1850 CENSLSS reveals how much the McKinney brothers had
improved their property on Onion Creek during the preceding
decade. Mac had 1,500 improved acres with fences and structures
valued at $45,000 and estimated his farm machinery, including the
mill, to be worth an additional 10,500, He owned about 100 hors-
GLBEEB.EB_E;oi?BgnSEﬁuBEPG_EnF
and 900 sheep, for & total value of $36,000. During the past year
Mac had harvested about 500 bughels of com and 180 bushels of
oats while the sheared sheep fumnished 3,100 pounds of wool.
From the cows’ milk, he processed an estimated 500 pounds of
butter. By these figures, the McKinney ranch was worth $95,000,
Mac did not raise cotton but James McKinney ginned eleven
bales from & portion of his cultivated 130 acres. He also grew com,
Irish and sweet potatoes, and other vegetables in his “market gar-
den.” James had fewer animals with only fourtsen horses, three
mules, and fifty milk cows, but about the same number of oxen,
range cattle, and hogs as his brother. James’s property was a self-
supporting farm rather than a breeding ranch like Mac’s. The
younger brother valued his land at $11,000, farm tools at $1,000,
and his livestock at $4.500. Neither man owned many slaves: Mac
had twenty-one including one couple both age seventy and & mun-
ber of children housed in five dwellings while James had fifteen

2
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McKINNEY BOMESTEAD DISTRICT, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
ADDITION OF ARCHEOLOGY AS AN AREA OF SIGNIFICANCE

The original nomination provided a biographical sketch of the life of Thomas

F. McKinney, a prominent figure in Texas' revolt against Mexico and in the settlement

of Travis County. Subsequent informant and documentary regearch by the Texas Parks
and Wildlife Departwent {McEschern and Ralph 1980: 7-2Q) resulted in a mora complete

chronology of the occupation of the McKinney Homestead:

Chronology of Ecents on the McKinney Property (E{mﬂf&gsl;em)md

Date

1832 Land on which Mciinney house stands was Sirst recordad in 10 league grant
paented by Santisgo del Valle.

1835 Samuel M. Wikigns, acting for del Valle, sold nine lemgues of the bnd 1o
Michael B. Menard.

19 Manard sold nine kagues of the lsnd to Thomas F. MdQnney.

1949 Meinoey moved io Travis County,

1851 Horse trainer’s house was buyilt
1852 MeKinney's mill was opened.

1853-61 House was buill during fhis period, bat constraction was stopped by the Ol

Wer,

1864 Important politicsl msstings 4o resolva conficing

1859  Mil was destroped by

1B85-86 Charlie Johns

1915 Chartia toved 10 the uppar fally
1915 Charla's daagiier, Chartie Mas

piace.,
1920°s  Mirs. Johns moved oul of the house,
1526 Albert Masks moved 1o tha houss
1936 Charles Darty wat bom in the “old
1M2  Property wms
ime.

£
H
£

» flaod.
1872 John Van Hagan left McKinney Falls Jor Long Lifand,
died,

abandoned and later b

3

a3 » park,

inherited by J.E. and Annis M. Seith; bind was kn their hands ot

.E. Smith and his sister Annie donated the land 16 the Poople of Texas kor use

SIRMNTEP ;’n ;l:f -:Las;as Y]

ACLEPTED
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A. APPLICATION FOR HISTORIC ZONING

PROJECT INFORMATION:

DEPARTMENTAL USE ONLY
APPLICATION DATE: _ FILE NUMBER(S): % (1H - 2007 ~0I4¢
TENTATVEHLCOATEL 2
TENTATIVE PC or ZAP DATE .
TENTATIVE CC DATE: CITYINITIATED: YES/NO
CASE MANAGER: _ ROLLBACK:  YESNO
APPLICATION ACCEPTED BY:

BASIC PROJECT DATA: [‘1} 1‘ ﬁ I ‘l A pdp
|
.9 A LAY
:COUNTV:I Iml"i

IF PROJECT ADDRESS CANNOT BE DEFINED ABOVE:
LOCATED FRONTAGE FEET ALONG THE N. 8. E. W. (CIRCLE ONE) SIDEOF
(ROAD NAME PROPERTY FRONTS ONTO), WHICH I8

APPROXIMATELY DISTANCE FROM (TS
INTERSECGTION WITH CROSS STREET.
AREA TO BE REZONED:
4. ACRES (OR) BQ.FT,
5. ZONING AND LAND USE INFORMATION:
EXISTING EXISTING TRACT# ACRES /80, FT. PROPOSED PROPOSED
2ZONING USE {IF MORE use ZONING
THAN 1)
Gl TRR Wome = _ 3 _ 28V ana. None Cs-H

RELATED CURRENT CASES:

6. ACTIVE ZONING CASE? (@1 NO) FILE NUMBER: __¢ {4H - 2007-03\4¢
7. RESTRICTIVE COVENANT? FILE NUMBER:

8. SUBDVISION? (VES FILE NUMBER:
9. SITE PLAN? (YES FILE NUMBER:

Revised February 15, 2005 7
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (SUBDIVISION REFERENCE OR METES AND BOUNDS):

10a. SUBDIVISION REFERENCE: Name:
Biock(s)
Plat Book:
Number,___

10b. METES AND BOUNDS {Attach two copies of certified fiekd notes if subdivision referance is not avaitable or
zoning Includes partial lots)

Lot(s )

3 T Outiot(s)
Page

DEED REFERENCE CONVEYING PROPERTY TO PRESENT OWNER AND TAX PARCEL LD.:
11. VOLUME:;

PAGE:

TAXPARCEL 1L.D. NO.

OTHER PROVISIONS:

12. 13 PROPERTY IN A ZONING COMBINING DISTRICT / OVERLAY ZONE7 YES Ea

TYPE OF COMBINING DIST/OVERLAY ZONE (NCCD,NP, etr)
13. LOCATED IN A LOCAL OR

AL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRIGT? YES ﬁ
14. 13 A TIA REQUIRED? (NOT REQUIRED IF BASE ZONING IS NOT CHANGING)
TRIPS PER DAY: Diocdton
TRAFFIC SERIAL ZONE(S}:

OWNERSHIP TYPE:

18. __SOLE __COMMUNITY PROPERTY __ PARTNERSHIP __ CORPORATION TRUST

If ownership is other than sole or communty property, fist Individuals/partnaraiprincipais below or aitach separate shest

OWNER INFORMATION: :Csilhr mihatad Wictoric znuiig rase,
18. OWNER CONTACT INF N

SIGNATURE: NAME:
FIRM NAME: ___ : TELEPHONE NUMBER:
STREET ADDRESS:

= STATE ZIP CODE:
EMAIL ADDRESS:

DEPARTMENTAL USE ONLY:

Revised Fabruary 18, 2005
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D. SUBMITTAL VERIFICATION
AND INSPECTION AUTHORIZATION

SUBMITTAL VERICATION

Mysignarureatbmbthefadlhatﬂwaﬂachodapplbaﬂmpackagehmpbtamdmhmmebwo!my
knowledge. IundmtandmatproperCltysm:evbwofwsappnu&unisdependentuponmemmwdhwmﬁm
provided and that any inaccurate or inadsquate information provided by me/my firnveis., may delay the proper review of

this application.

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT NAME BELOW SIGNATURE AND
INDICATE FIRM REPRESENTED, IF APPLICABLE.

Signature %’ ' Date

Name (Typed or Printed)

Firm (if applicable)

INSPECTION AUTHORIZATION

As owner or authorized agent, my signature authorizes staff to visit and inspect the property for which this
application is being submitted.
PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT NAME BELOW SIGNATURE AND
INDICATE FIRM REPRESENTED, IF APPLICABLE.

- - T L

Signajure Date

Name (Typed or Printed)

Firm (if applicable)

Revised February 15, 2005
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E. ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

conceming
Subdivision Plat Notes, Deed Restrictions,
Restrictive Covenants
and / or
Zoning Conditional Overlays

i._X@A_&Muﬂg_mmwformmmmm.m
restrictions,

(Print name of appicant)

restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional overiays prohibiting certain uses andior requiring certain
development restrictions l.e. height, access, screening eto. on this property, located at

{Adcress or Legal Descriplion)

If a conflict should result with the request | am submitting to the City of Austin due to subdivision plat notes,
deed restrictions, restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional cverlays it will be my responsibility to resclve
it. I also acknowledge that | understand the implications of use and/or development restrictions that are a
result of a subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions, restrictive covenants andfer zoning conditional overiays.

| understand that If requested, | must provide copies of any and ail subdivision plat notes, deed restrictions,
restrictive covenants and/or zoning conditional overlay infarmation which may apply fo this property.

6-2-pf
(Appilcant's signature)/ (Date)

Revisad February 15, 2005 10



